
Memo 
To: Inquiring Audit Vendors 

From: Santa Barbara County Employees’ Retirement System 

Date: November 18, 2022 

Subject: Responses to clarification questions on request for proposal for audit services 

Questions: 

1. What are some things you would like to see improved in the financial audit process compared to 
previous years for the ACFR, the GASB 68 schedules and the GASB 75 schedules? 

More time for internal staff to respond to questions regarding fieldwork testing. 
Receiving timely investment returns and true ups. 
 

2. Can you please provide the prior year audit reports on the GASB 68 schedules and the GASB 75 
schedules? 

Prior year audit reports can be found here: Financial Reports | SBCERS 

If there are issues with this link, you may also navigate to www.sbcers.org > resources > financial 
reports 

3. Was there a Communications to Those Charged with Governance report or letter issued in prior 
years’ audits? If so, could you please provide an example? 

No. 

4. Were there any management letters issued in prior years’ audits? If so, could you please provide an 
example? 

Management received two internal recommendations as a result of the audit. 

5. Were there any uncorrected misstatements in prior years’ audits? 

No. 

6. Are there any plans to implement a new pension administration system or general ledger system 
during the contract period?  

No. 

7. Section IV discusses the scope of services. In regard to the scope of services:   

a. When did the prior audit firm typically perform their interim fieldwork and for how many weeks? 
When did they perform their final fieldwork and for how long?  
Remote audit interim fieldwork = First week of August (5 days max) 
Remote final fieldwork = End of September (5 days max) 

 
b. How many hours did the prior year auditor spend on the audits of the financial statements, the 

GASB 68 schedules, and the GASB 75 schedules?  
SBCERS was billed in 4 phases.  Billing was not specifically broken down to the work 
performed, but to the contracted amount. 

 



c. How many staff personnel and for how many weeks did the prior year audit firm have working 
on the audits of the financial statements, the GASB 68 schedules, and the GASB 75 
schedules?  
Field work starts at the beginning of August and ends through December with intermittent 
periods of work.  There are a total of 7 audit staff members; however this includes the audit 
partners.  Actual “on-site” staff is between 2 and 3 members. 

 
d. What were the prior year’s fees for the audits of the financial statements, the GASB 68 

schedules, and the GASB 75 schedules?  
Audit: $53,280 
GASB 75: $6,050 
GASB 68: $8,170 

            Total $67,500 
 
e. Were any part of the prior year audits performed remotely? Is SBCERS open to remote or 

hybrid audits in the future? 
Yes. Yes.  

 
f. How many employers were selected on an annual basis for member census data testing? What 

were the sample sizes for each employer selected? 
20 Retiree 
20 CY Retiree 
10 Decedents 
10 Active Retiree 
20 Active New CY 
20 Active Actuary 
40 Active Employees 
15 Lump Sum 
10 Deferred 
5 Deferred Actuary 

 
g. What are the specific footnote disclosures that SBCERS would like technical assistance with? 

Please refer to SBCERS’ financial statements and the listing of common note disclosures found 
in the table of contents. 

8. Section XI discussed the evaluation and selection procedures. What is the weighting scale or 
scoring system for the different criteria? 
There is no formal weighting or scoring.  In general, SBCERS is looking for a clear and concise 
proposal that would demonstrate each vendor’s qualifications. 
 

9. The RFP references beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, through 2028. Is this the 
intent of SBCERS and not the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023? On page 14, the contract 
performance begins on or about June 30, 2023 (or upon execution of the contract). 
SBCERS would require audit services for review of the financial statements for the period ending 
June 30, 2023 for a five year contract. 
 

10. In the second paragraph in A, questions are to be submitted by 5 pm PDT Friday December 5, 
2022, but in the third paragraph in A addenda will be posted by 5 pm PDT Friday November 18, 
2022. Please clarify as on page 14, the due date is November 15. 
Due date for clarification questions is November 15th, 2022 with a response post date of November 
18th, 2022 while the due date for proposals is December 5th, 2022. 
 

11. In B, a five-year contract is contemplated with an additional five-year period on SBCERS sole 
discretion. Referencing the first question, would this count from the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2024 or 2023? 
This would count from the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 



12. The internet link to www.sbcers.org, points to www.cccera.org.  Was that intended? 
Please refer to www.sbcers.org  
 

13. The Principal / Partner, Audit Manager and On-site Audit Supervisor must have varying years of 
experience including audits of defined benefit plans.  They must also be a Certified Public 
Accountant licensed by and in good standing with the State of California.  Would that preclude 
varying members of our team, despite our ability to apply for practice privileges under Section 5096 
of the Business and Professions Code and/or be fully licensed prior to commencement of services 
contemplated in the contract?  Would that so-called ‘mobility’ provisions be acceptable? 
SBCERS prefers to engage with a Principal / Partner, Audit Manager and On-site Supervisor with a 
Certified Public Accountant licensed by and in good standing with the State of California only. 
 

14. Why is SBCERS going out for proposal? 
It is standard practice for SBCERS to go out for proposal ever five years. 
 

15. Were there any adjustments proposed by the auditors for FY 2021 of FY 2022? 
Our current auditors recommended a fair market value true up for our Real Estate portfolio. 
 

16. How many auditors were out in the field during interim? For how many days? 
Interim fieldwork was done remotely.  The staff was one manager and 2 staff.   
 

17. How many auditors were out in the field during final fieldwork? For how many days? 
Final fieldwork was done remotely.  The staff was one manager and 2 staff. 
 

18. If SBCERS could change one thing about the current audit process what would that be? 
SBCERS would like to receive fair market value results from investments more timely.  Also, 
SBCERS would like more time to turn around audit questions on any samples taken. 
 

19. What controls are in place to monitor and record calls and distributions for real estate and private 
equity investments? (internal or outside consultants?) 
Cash flows notifications are sent to the Investment Team via email by our consultants. These cash 
flows are input to a spreadsheet for tracking. That spreadsheet is then crossed referenced with 
reports run through BNY Nexen to affirm the cash flow. Should any cash not match, the Investment 
Team will contact the consultants to review the disconnect in data. 
 

20. What reconciliation procedures are performed between the different investment managers and 
custodian and how often? 
Investments are trued up to their fair market value at fiscal year end using reports as provided by 
the investment managers. 
 

21. Are there going to be any significant changes to the system that would change the investment line 
up, software systems used, or benefits provided in the near-term know at this time? 
No. 
 

22. What are the key qualities that the SBCERS is expecting from their auditors? 
Clear communication, independence and integrity of the audit process and financial reporting. 
 

23. Are any of the hard to value investments audited financial statements prepared in a basis of 
accounting other than US GAAP? 
No. 
 

24. Does the SBCERS have a policy to have an independent actuary re-perform the actuary 
calculation? If so, how often and when was the last one performed? 
In 2016 and in 2022, in hired independent actuary outside of SBCERS contracted actuary to 
performed a peer review audit of the actuarial experience study and a replication audit of the June 
30, 2016 and as of June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation performed by the System’s consulting actuary.   



 
 

25. Is SBCERS willing to have a large portion of the audit being performed remotely? 
Yes. 
 

26. Are there any specific meetings (beyond entrance, exit and fieldwork meetings) or testing items that 
you would want the auditors on site for? 
Yes. For final audit presentation at the Board of Retirement meeting. 
 

27. Does SBCERS use an internal audit function? If yes, what are their roles and has their work been 
used by the previous auditors in the past? 
No. 
 

 


